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History of 29 Dearborn St., Salem, Mass.

Owners & Occupants

Photo of Eleanor Berry (1907-1996), who resided here with her parents.
From Wheaton College yearbook, class of 1929




Owners & Occupants
29 Dearborn Street, Salem

by Robert Booth, April, 2019

According to available evidence, this house was built in 1911 for Walter
T. Berry, grocer, and wife Adelaide S. Warner.

Walter and Adelaide purchased the lot here on June 24,1911, from Frank
E. Locke (ED 2085:51). The land, which had formerly been part of the
extensive orchards of Robert Manning (Hawthorne’s uncle and guardian),
was described as bounding s.e. on Dearborn Street 50°, s.w. on land of
Williams 100, n.w. 50’ on land of Locke, and n.e. 100’ on land of Locke.
The deed had some restrictions to ensure setback and sidelines of any new
house, which would not exceed two and a half stories in height nor be
occupied by more than two families.

The house was probably built right away, in the summer and fall of 191 1
in the so-called Queen Ann style. It evidently had a tenant apartment from
the outset. The real-estate valuations of Salem (ward 6, precinct two),
taken in April, 1912, show Adelaide Berry as the owner of the new house
at 29 Dearborn Street: it was valued at $5200 and its lot at $800.

Walter Thomas Berry (1871-1947) was a not a native of Salem. He was
born at Georgetown, Sagadahoc County, Maine, on March 23, 1871, the
fourth and last child of Leander Berry & Temperance (Snowman) Berry.
In 1880, when Walter was nine, his parents, Leander, 59, was a
Georgetown trader (likely a grocer), and wife Tempy W., 52, was a
homemaker.

Walter grew up in Georgetown, Maine, and probably grew to adulthood
there. In his twenties he moved to Cambridge, Mass., and worked as a
bookkeeper; but he had a sweetheart in Harpswell, Maine: on Oct. 26,
1897, Ella Randall, a school teacher, married him. Both were 26. Ella was
the daughter of George C. Randall & Annie M. Everett of Harpswell.

Soon Ella was pregnant. Before the baby came, Mrs. Ella M. (Randall)
Berry, 28, died at Cambridge on Jan. 28, 1899, of heart disease and the
grippe. The effect on Walter and her loved ones may be imagined. He
moved back to Maine, and in 1900 was working as a clerk in Bath and
boarding in the Luce house at 80 Elm Street (1900 census, house 51).
Soon after, evidently, he moved to Salem.



Salem, the seat of Essex County and once a great seaport in the early
1800s, had become a manufacturing city with much retail and wholesale
business as well. In the period just before Walter Berry’s arrival, Salem
had many new businesses; and many established businesses were
expanding. Retail stores and banks prospered; horse-drawn trolleys ran
every which-way; and machinists, carpenters, millwrights, and other
specialists all thrived.

In the 1890s, Salem’s cotton-cloth mills at The Point employed 1400
people who produced about 19 million yards annually, worth about $1.5
million. Most of them were French-speaking immigrants from Canada.
The city’s large shoe factories stood downtown behind the railroad depot,
on Dodge and Lafayette Streets, and at Castle Hill (Jefferson Avenue
vicinity). A jute bagging company prospered with plants on Skerry Street
and English Street; its products were sent south to be used in cotton-
baling. Most of the tanneries stood on or near Boston Street. Salem
factories also produced lead, paint, and oil. At the Eastern Railroad yard
on Bridge Street, cars were repaired and even built new. The streets were
lit at night by electricity.

More factories and more people required more space for buildings, more
roads, and more storage areas. This space was created by filling in rivers,
harbors, and ponds. The once-broad North River was filled from both
shores and became a canal along Bridge Street above the North Bridge.
The large and beautiful Mill Pond, which occupied the whole area
between the present Jefferson Avenue, Canal Street, and Loring Avenue,
finally vanished beneath streets, storage areas, Jjunk-yards, and rail-yards.
The South River, too, with its epicenter at Central Street (the Custom
House had opened there in 1805) disappeared under the pavement, and
some of its old wharves were joined together with much in-fill and turned
into coal-yards and lumber-yards. Only a canal was left, running in from
Derby and Central Wharves to Lafayette Street.

Walter T. Berry, 31, of Salem, working as an assistant secretary in 1902,
married (in Leominster) on December 2, 39-year-old Adelaide Sarah
Warner, a Salem school teacher. Adelaide (1863-1945) was born in
Westminster, Mass., daughter of Dr. Clinton W. Warner and Sarah C.
Cummings. Her older brother, Chester, had died at eight in 1867, and she
had an older sister, Mary Abbie; two younger siblings had died young.
Adelaide was educated at Mount Holyoke College (as was Mary Abbie),
class of 1886, and taught at Woonsocket, RI, before coming to Salem.

On April 10, 1907, at Boston, Adelaide (Warner) Berry gave birth to a
daughter, whom they named Eleanor Warner.



By 1908 Walter was working as a clerk in Boston and the family resided
in Salem at 362 Buffum Street (per Directory). In 1910 Walter gave up
the commute and became a grocer with his own store at 18 School Street,
Salem. The store had housed a grocery for nearly 35 years (see
advertisement from 1910 Naumkeag Directory); he took a partner, Henry
C. Edwards, who lived at 24 Symonds Street. The 1910 census shows the

Berry family on Buffum Street: Eleanor, 8, Adelaide P., 46, and Walter,
39, grocer.

As has been mentioned, the Berrys had the house at 29 Dearborn Street
built in 1911. In 1912, Walter T. Berry (no occupation listed) and family
resided here (#29) with tenants Ella C. Ball, a teacher at the Pickering
school (evidently she was a close friend of the Berrys), and William H.
Rowbotham (and family), a superintendent at the tannery of the Bay State
Belting Company (50 Grove), which was owned by his brother George R.
Rowbotham of Boston (per Naumkeag Directory).

Salem kept growing. The Canadians were followed in the early 20t
century by large numbers of Polish and Ukrainian families, who settled
primarily in the Derby Street neighborhood, and by Sicilians, in the High
Street neighborhood. By the eve of World War One, the bustling, polyglot
city supported large department stores and factories of every description.
People from the surrounding towns, and Marblehead in particular, came to
Salem to do their shopping; and its handsome government buildings, as
befit the county seat, were busy with conveyances of land, lawsuits, and
probate proceedings. The city’s politics were lively, and its economy was
strong.

On June 25, 1914, in the morning, in Blubber Hollow (Boston Street at
Proctor), a fire started in small wooden shoe factory. This fire soon raced
out of control, for the west wind was high and the season had been dry.
Out of Blubber Hollow the fire roared easterly, a monstrous front of flame
and smoke, wiping out the houses of Boston Street, Essex Street, and
upper Broad, and then sweeping through Hathorne, Winthrop, Endicott,
and other residential streets. Men and machines could not stop it: the
enormous fire crossed over into South Salem and destroyed the
neighborhoods west of Lafayette Street, then devoured the mansions of
Lafayette Street itself, and raged onward into the tenement district of The
Point. Despite the combined efforts of heroic fire crews from many towns
and cities, the fire overwhelmed everything in its path: the Naumkeag
Steam Cotton Company factory complex exploded in an inferno.

At Derby Street, just beyond Union, after a 13-hour rampage, the monster
died, having consumed 250 acres, 1600 houses, and 41 factories, and
leaving three dead and thousands homeless. Some people had insurance,
some did not; all received much support and generous donations from all



over the country and the world. It was one of the greatest urban disasters
in the history of the United States. Salem soon recovered; and several
urban-renewal projects (including Hawthorne Boulevard, which involved
removing old houses and widening old streets) were put into effect.

William Rowbotham, born in Quebec in 1876, had come to Salem in 1900
and joined St. Peter’s Episcopal Church, where he became a vestryman.
He married and was father of a daughter, and was a much-admired
businessman, running the tannery owned by his brothers. In November,
1915, the Rowbothams had left #29 and moved into a new house nearby
on Orne Street. Sadly, in December Mr. Rowbotham became afflicted
with a brain disease; and he died at forty on Jan. 29, 1916.

In 1916 Walter Berry worked as a clerk at the Merchants National Bank,
and the tenants here were Mrs. Lyman (Annie M. Muchmore) Holman,
and her grown children (boarding here) were Lyman Holman Jr., a clerk;
Pauline, a clerk at Parker Brothers games (90 Bridge); Ruth; and Joseph
R., a driver (per Naumkeag Directory). She had two other adult children, a
son Theodore in the French army, and a deceased daughter, Mrs. Fannie
Perley. Annie’s late husband, Lyman Holman (1854-191 0), a native of
Salem, had been a prominent businessman, engaged in real-estate
development and the moving of buildings, as had his father. Annie had
grown up on Church Street, the daughter of George R. Muchmore &
Jeanette Norie; by 1916 her sister, Mrs. Georgette Reeves, was living in
the house on Church Street.

In 1918, Walter Berry was listed as “army secretary” by occupation; this
was a probably a war-related job (per Naumkeag Directory). The World
War ended late in 1918. In November, 1919, he bought from Lizzie Ropes
the buildings and land at the corner of Dearborn and Southwick Streets,
across the street from #29 (ED 2430:519). This appears to be an
investment; he sold the buildings and a piece of that land late in 1920; and
in April, 1923, he would sell the rest of the land (ED 2472:154; 2551:159).

In 1920 (per census and directory) Walter T. Berry, 45, working as a
clerk-accountant at Merchants National Bank, resided here (#29) with wife
Adelaide 53, and daughter Eleanor, thirteen; the tenants were George
McAnaul, 34, born in Mass. of Scottish parents, wife Sophia, 34 (born in
Canada of Scottish parents), and young daughters Mary and Ruth. George
was a manager at Ruggles & Klingman Manufacturing Co. (Foster’s
Court), makers of power-plant specialty equipment (per Naumkeag
Directory).

On May 31, 1923, the Berrys sold the homestead to Albert L. Haines and
wife Nellie (ED 2555:364). The Haineses moved in, and the Berrys
continued to reside here too. In 1926 Walter T. Berry (wife Adelaide) was



Assistant Vault Officer at the bank; the teacher Ella C. Ball was back as a
boarder, and Albert L. Haines was working as a B & M Railroad
brakeman (Naumkeag Directory).

The Berrys’ subsequent life is summarized here. They purchased a
homestead at 5 Saltonstall Parkway and resided there with their daughter
and their retired teacher friend. Miss Ball was 68 in 1930: Walter Berry,
59, was working as a bolt-shop manager, Adelaide, 66, was at home, and
Eleanor, 23, was working as a file clerk at a court house. A recent
graduate of Wheaton College (class of 1929), Eleanor (1907-1996)
evidently was devoted to her parents. Sometime between 1935 and 1940,
the family moved to Leominster (with Miss Ball), and Mr. Berry worked
there in 1940 (per census) as a bank manager. Mrs. Adelaide S. (Warner)
Berry would die in April 1945, in her 82d year, in Westminster, Mass., the
town of her birth. Eleanor, 39, married (Jan. 15, 1946) Burland H.
Hawkes, a businessman of Biddeford, Maine.

Walter T. Berry would die on Oct. 28, 1947, aged seventy-six; his remains
were interred with those of his wife at Woodside Cemetery, Westminster.

The new owner of the homestead, Albert Leslie Haines, was (in 1909)
working as a yard brakeman for the Boston & Maine, when, on June 2, he,
aged 29, had married Nellie Augusta Lane, 33, a Salem housekeeper.
Neither was native to Salem: Nellie was born in Hampton Falls, NH, while
Albert came from Fort Fairfield, Maine, the son of John W. & Margaret
Haines. Nellie was the daughter of Charles W. Lane & Martha Brown. In
1920 Albert & Nellie had resided at 56 Essex Street, Albert working as a
railroad brakeman, Nellie at home (per census, house 201, DD 5, ED 260).
They had no children. "
By 1920 Salem was once again a thriving city; and its tercentenary in

1926 was a time of great celebration. The Depression hit in 1929, and
continued through the 1930s. Salem, the county seat and regional retail
center, gradually rebounded.

In 1930, the house was occupied by Albert Haines, 48, railroad brakeman,
and wife Nellie, 54, and boarders Bessie G. Mackintire, 49, a chief clerk,
and Clara G. Muirhead, 68, the Nova Scotia-born widow of William
Muirhead (per census and directory). Mrs. Muirhead would move to 9
Summer Street and die there in 1942. In 1935, Albert Haines, working as a
yard helper at the B&M Railroad, resided here with wife Nellie; tenant
Bessie G. Mackintire was working as a stenographer at Mutual Fire
Inspection Bureau of New England (per directory).

The 1940 census lists the sole occupancy of Albert, 58, and Nellie A., 64.



In 1947 (per Naumkeag Directory) the house was occupied by Albert L.
Haines and wife Nellie A., and also by Roy F. Miller, working in Boston
as a clerk at Railway Express Company, and wife Mary V.

Salem prospered after World War II through the 1950s and into the 1960s.
General Electric, Sylvania, Parker Brothers, Pequot Mills (formerly
Naumkeag Steam Cotton Co.), Almy’s and Newmark’s and Webber’s
department stores, various other retailers, and Beverly’s United Shoe
Machinery Company were all major local employers.

After the deaths of the Haineses, the homestead was conveyed in
September, 1967, to Mary and husband Henry L. Andrews (ED 5474:222).
Mr. Andrews, a supervisor at a manufacturer, died on Aug. 16, 1970; and
in December, 1975, Mary (now Mrs. Melia, of Hull) sold the premises to
for $44,000 to Cynthia and husband Kenneth Tache (ED 8507:26).

In February, 1986, 29 Dearborn was made a two-unit condominium.

Since that time, ownership has changed frequently in Unit 2. 1990 Gulas
to Marianne F. Leahy; 2000 Leahy to Dennis Menard; 2001 Menard to
M/M Michael S Woods; 2002 Woodses to James & Cynthia Jackson;
2005 Jacksons to Jennifer Moore; 2009 Moore to Arthur Freitas and Kayla
Kirkpatrick, who in May, 2015, sold the same to Patrick Joy and Jessica
A. Smetano (ED 34066:26).



Glossary & Sources

A figure like (ED 123:45) refers to book 123, page 45, Essex South Registry of Deeds.

A figure like (#12345) refers to Essex Probate case 12345, on file at the Essex Probate
Court, or on microfilm at Mass. Archives, Boston, or at the Peabody Essex Museum’s
Phillips Library, Rowley.

MSSRW refers to the multi-volume compendium, Mass. Soldiers & Sailors in the
Revolutionary War, at the Salem Public Library among other places.

MSSCRW refers to the multi-volume compendium, Mass. Soldiers, Sailors, & Marines
in the Civil War, at the Salem Public Library among other places.

EIHC refers to the Essex Institute Historical Collections (discontinued), a multi-volume
set (first volume published in 1859) of data and articles about Essex County. The
indices of the ETHC have been consulted regarding many of the people associated with
this house.

The six-volume published Salem Vital Records (marriages, births, and deaths through
1849) have been consulted, and the Salem Directory and later Naumkeag Directory,
with data about residents and their addresses, etc.

Sidney Perley’s three-volume History of Salem, 1626-1716, has been consulted, as has
the four-volume William Bentley’s Diary, J. Duncan Phillips’ books, some newspapers,
and other sources.

Salem real estate valuations, and, where applicable, Salem Street Books, have also been
consulted, as have genealogies, and the Salem/Naumkeag Directories.

There is much more material available about Salem and its history; and the reader is
encouraged to make his or her own discoveries.

--Robert Booth
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SALEM ADVERTISING DEPARTMENT 1497

7 (. A Ketchum & Co.

Wholesale Dealets in

Flour, Grain, Hay and
General Produce

Telepbone

COR. FRONT AND CENTRAL STREETS
SALEM, MASSACHUSETTS

D W Colbert
FINE GROCERIES ANE® PRODUCE

SHIP CHANDLERY, PAINTS and OILS, LEAD, RIGGING, ETC.

44 and 46 English Street, - -  Salem, Mass.

Telephone 365

WALTER T. BERRY =

Groceries and Provisions
FRUITS IN THEIR SEASON

§F For nearly 35 years this store has been occupied, and is well known.
It has been renovated and is now well supplied with fresh goods.

18 School Street, - - Salem, Mass.

TRACY’S CASH
MARKET

CHOICE GROCERIES and
PROVISIONS

A full supply of Meats, chetablcs,
Canned Goods, Etc., at the
Lowest Cash Prices.

131a; Essex St., Salem, Mass.

Telephone
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Morris Hess, hide dealer, with main office at New York
City, has spent a couple of weeks now in the Chicago
market.

Louis Welller, member of Chas. Friend & Co., large
Chicago hide dealers, has returned from an eastern trip.

August Chandonne, big buyer of raw calfgkins for the
Ohio Leather Co., of Girard, Ohio, was in the Chicago mar-
ket one day last week.

Fred Dorner, of Dennett & Prince, St. Louis dealers in
leather, visited his old acquaintances in the Chicago trade
for the first time in several months.

Rushing Work on Tannery

Work on the new tannery of the Wilder Tanning Co.
of Waukegan, Ill., is being rushed just as fast as it possibly
can, The hide house has already been completed as far as
the outside structure is concerned and other billings are
going up as quick as men and machinery can make them.
There -are over 300 men employed in the building opera-
tions now, and the company is hiring new ones every day.
Three shifts are being worked, eight hours each, and every
minute utilized.

The Wilder Tanning Co. last week moved their offices
to the People's Life Building, Fifth and Randolph streets,
Chicago, where they have a large suite on the 9th floor. The
president, Emory Wilder, and other executives have their
headquarters located there, as well as 8. E. Germalin, the
hide buyer for the concern. p

BOSTON AND NEW ENGLAND

New Buyer for Sears-Rosbuck
Fred Kelley has resigned his position as buyer for the
Sears-Roebuck Co. in Boston. It {8 announced that Mr,
Kelley's successor is R. J. McNally, formerly of Kelly-
Buckley Co., shoe manufacturers, Brockton.

Rough But Safe
Henry Holder, European agent for the Turner Tanning
Machinery Company, cabled last week his safe arrival at
Bordeaux, France, after a rough voyage.

“ In New York Market
Thomas F. Travers, of Travers Shoe Co., Lynn, is in
New York Market this week.

Shoe Man Recovering

William T. Varina, of the Woodbury Shoe Company,
Beverly, is recovering from a severe attack of pneumonia.

New Club House

Frank H. Gage, of Rousmaniere, Willlams Co., Boston,
is president of the new Neighborhood club, at Phillips’
beach, a residential section of the North Shore. William
L. Terhune, retired trade paper publisher, is vice-presi-
dent; Frank E. Wright, Boston leather merchant, and
Everit B. Terhune, are directors. The club dedicated a
new club house on Monday.

Tanner Dined

Jacob C. Benz, of the Benz Kid Co., was given a dinner,
by friends, just before- his departure on a southern trip
last week. Thomas Welch, of the Welch Shoe Co., Lynn,
was toastmaster at the dinner. Among the speakers were
Louis M. Winslow, of Lynn, Joseph Rhinehart, and William
Lewis, of New York, all kid leather merchants, and Henry
C. Atwill, attorney general of Massachusetts.

Death of Superintendent
Wm. H. Rowbotham, superintendent of the tannery of
the Bay State Belting Co., Salem, died Saturday morning,
after a illness of eight weeks, from an abscess at the base
of the brain. He was 40 years old and had been superin-
tendent of the tannery in Salem for 16 years. He is a
brother of Arthur H. Rowbotham, president of the company.

Addition to Machine Shop

Turner Tanning Machinery Co. {8 to build a machine
shop in addition to its plant in Peabody. It {s running its
present plant to capacity, and some departments it is oper-
ating nights. - ‘

Lecture on Leather
William Armstrong, of the Armstrong Leather Mart,
Salem, lectured on the development of the leather trade
before the Essex Institute, Salem, Monday evening.
To Bulld Factories
Carr Leather Co. plan to build a tannery on Blarney’s

SHOE AND LEATHER REPORTER

[February 3, 1916]

fleld, off Washington street, Peabody. They will not re-
bufld their tannery on Boston street, Salem, which was
burned, but will put up a large brick factory, to be leased.

Buys Factory

Thomas H. O'Shea, manufacturer of India leather, has
purchased the Jacobs factory, Main street, Peabody, and
has started to fit it up for the manufacture of India leather.
His own factory on Grove street was burned a while ago.
The factory was last occupied by P. Lennox & Co, Mr.
O'Shea will put in a steam heating plant, and will take
ellectric power from the town. Later, he will build a steam
plant.

Day and Night
B. N. Moore & Sons, Peabody leather manufacturers,
find successful their experiment of running their shop
n:gll:ts. They also are keeping their Boston store open all
night.

White Sole Leather

George C, Vaughan is making 1200 sides of white sole
leather a day at his tannery in Peabody. The demand for
this leather is large, and all reserve stocks have been
cleaned out. Mr. Vaughan is cutting up a lot of leather
into soles, as well as selling it in the sides.

Hospital President
Matthew Robson, veteran tanner of Salem, and direc
tor of the American Hide & Leather Company, has been
elected president of Salem Hospital. Mr. Robson is now
over eighty, but he does not hesitate to take the presidency
of the hospital, with its responsibility for building a group
of new hospital buildings.

8hoe Trade Schools

A substantial step towards starting shoe trade schools
seems to have been taken by Lynn, It proposes to start a
school, under the direction of a board of trustees, to be
made up of shoe men and educators. This will separate
the school from the public school system, and it will put it
on a basis for independent development. The school will
have a practise department, equipped with machinery, and
class rooms for the study of the theory of shoemaking. A
bill before the legislature provides for establishing such a
school. Action on the bill has been delayed at the request
of Brockton representatives, who wish to see if the bill
cannot be applied to a shoe trade school in Brockton.

A Class In Spanish
With the hope of preparing for a development of Latin
American trade, Lynn Chamber of Commerce has started a
class in Spanish. Dr. James H. Worman, of the Spanish
department of the Massachusetts Board of Education, is
director,

New Wood Heel Firm

The Glines Wood Heel Co. is a new concern recently
established at 112 Phoenix Row, Haverhill, Mass., for the
manufacture of wood heels. This concern i8 owmed by
John A. Glines, who was superintendent for a number of
years of the Chas. K. Fox Heel Co., and has been for the
last two years a member of the American Wood Heel Co.
Mr. Glines has taken the entire fourth floor at the above
address, and is equipping with up-to-date materials of every
description. His machinery will be motor driven.

Robert W. Griffith, sales manager of the tanning ex-
tract department of the Champion Fibre Co., Canton, N. C.,
is visiting the Boston and New York markets,

Will Sell for Eilers & Marsh Leather Co.

James J. McCarthy, who has been associated at differ-
ent times with Barry & Keyes, Weber Leather Co., and for
the past six years with Wright & Wright, Inc., has taken
charge of the split department of the Eilers & Marsh
Leather Co. of Boston. This line consists of coze splits for
button fly and quarter linings, gussets, etc.

3 Cincinnatl Visitor

P. A. Henry, the Cincinnati leather dealer, called on

his friends in the local trade this week.

Takes Pleasure Trip
Elmer J. Bliss, president of the Regal Shoe Co., aalle'd
Saturday for the West Indies on the United Fruit Co.’s
steamer “Pastores.” This is the firat cruise to this ter
ritory ever made by a boat sailing under the American
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Lyman BHolman

:ig,“ys’v,:‘e “7 E should not forget those who, although unobtrusive in their
P S)A everyday life, yet by their individuality and great force of
N

W f

§ "',’ ‘ éﬂ_‘f character mold the commercial destinies and give tone ta
A\ I'jg the communities in which they live. Among the citizens of
fﬁ_, %‘S@ the city of Salem, Massachusetts, who have achieved distinc-

tion in business entitling them to be placed among the repre-

sentative men of the commmunity, there are some, whose quiet
perseverance, in a particular pursuit, while it excites little notice from the great
masses, as the years pass by, yet results in elevating them to positions enviable
in the eyes of their fellow-men, and as lasting as well merited. In an extend-
ed search it would be difficult to find one who would be a better example than
the late Lyman Holman, who gained success in life that is not measured by
financial prosperity alone, but is gauged by the kindly and congenial associa-
tions that go toward satisfying man’s nature. His name ever stood as 2 syno-
nym for all that was enterprising in business and progressive in citizenship,
and his industry, energy, courage and fidelity to principle were illustrated in his
career. His death, which occurred n Salem, Massachusetts, September 10,
1910, removed from the city of his birth a business man of marked force and
energy, and one who possessed sterling personal qualities.

The birth of Lyman Holman occurred in Salem, Massachusetts, January
6, 1854, the son of Lyman and Fannie (Smith) Holman, both being 6f Eng-
lish descent. The progenitor of this family first settled in Orange, Massa-
chusetts, and then came the father of Lyman Holman and his two brothers,
from the port of London, and likewise settled in Orange, the one brother going
to New York, the other to the State of New Hampshire. They first landed at
Shiprock, Lynn, Massachusetts, where soon after they separated, each one
seeking a home in a different state, Lyman Holman, Sr., later went to Salem,
Massachusetts, where he settled permanently, and became a mover of buildings
and other large edifices. Contracts were awarded to him from all parts of
the State of Massachusetts, and he was looked up to as a conscientious business
man, and one whose word was as good as his bond. Both he and his wife died
in Salem.

Lyman Holman, Jr., was one of eight children, of whom five grew to ma-
turity. His early childhood and youth were spent in the acquirement of an
excellent education, first at the old Hacker public school on Aborn street, Sa-
lem, and later at Dummer Academy, and in this way was well equipped to
start life’s battle. He was the youngest of the family, and the only son who
entered into business with his father, which he did at the age of seventeen
years, learning the business in every detail. At the death of his father, he be-
187




188 Lyman Polman

came the successor, and the business under his careful management prospered
and steadily increased. It is interesting to note that his first team were a pair
of oxen, and he delighted in relating his many experiences of those days of
long ago. He became well known all over the State of Massachusetts, and his
own labors constituted the secure foundation upon which he built his success.
His name was known and recognized in the highest circles of the business
world as that of a man to be trusted and one with whom it was a satisfaction
to transact business. After carrying on this business for a few years, Mr.
Holman retired, and gave his entire attention and time to the cultivation and
improvement of his fine farm. He was one of the larger real estate owners
in Salem, being the owner of several houses there, and his relations with his
tenants might be called benevolently feudal. He also owned real estate jn Dan-
vers, Peabody and Middleton, Massachusetts. On October 21, 1880, Lyman
Holman was united in marriage with Annie M. Muchmore, who was born in
Salem, Massachusetts, a daughter of George Richard and Jeanette (Norie)
Muchmore, both being of old Scotch families, dating back to the time of Lord
Muckelmore. The Muchmore coat-of-arms is as follows:

Arms—Argent, three martlets gules,
Crest—A moorcock proper in grass and reeds.

George Richard Muchmore was born in Salem, and died there in the same
house on Church street in which he was born. Mrs. Muchmore was born in
Halifax, and to Mr. and Mrs. Muchmore two children were born, namely, An-
nie M., who is now Mrs. Lyman Holman, and Georgette, who is the widow of
Howard Reeves, and is living in the old home on Church street in Salem, which
was built over two hundred years ago. Mr. and Mrs. Holman were the par-
ents of eight children, as follows: Fannie, who died in infancy; Joseph R.,
who was united in marriage with May Edgar; Fannie May, deceased, who
became the wife of Frank Perley, and they were the parents of three children;
Theodore, who is now in the French army; Pauline, now Mrs. Harry Skeffing-
ton; Lena, who became the wife of H. Raymond Allen, residing in Providence,
Rhode Island, and they are the parents of one daughter, Barbara ; Ruth Stock-
well, now Mrs. Edward Slattery; and Lyman. Since the death of her husband
Mrs. Holman has continued to live at No. 29 Dearborn street, Salem, Massa-
chusetts.

Mr. Holman was a man of rare courtesy and kindly feelings towards all,
and no one ever came in contact with him who did not realize and admire his
many splendid qualities. A strong will and a loving, gentle and unselfish na-
ture, firm convictions and high ideals, were characteristics of his. His loss was
keenly and deeply felt by the entire community, and left a vacant place in so
many hearts. The Rev. De Witt Clark officiated at the funeral, and the in-
terment was at Harmony Grove.

Mr. Holman was ever faithful to life’s nearest duties, and faithful to both
the demands of his work and his home. He was essentially a “home man,”
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for his inclinations always brought him to the home circle and there lay his
chief recreation in the society of his wife and children. Regarded as a citizen
and in his social relations, he belonged to that useful and helpful type of men
whose ambitions and desires are centered and directed in those channels through
which flow the greatest and most permanent benefits to the greatest number.
He had many friends, probably because to that strong and essential honesty
that is the very foundation of social life he added a toleration of others that
drew all men towards him, as to one they instinctively recognized as a faith-
ful friend, and such he truly was. To illustrate that he was socially inclined,
Mr. Holman was a very prominent Mason, a Mason of high degree, exempli-
fying the true principles of that order, and was also a Shriner and a Knight
Templar. He was an honored business man of Salem, Massachusetts, and by
his own honorable exertions and moral attributes he gained for himself all
that a man could desire. Public-spirited in the highest degree, he was ever
forward in encouraging those enterprises which would in any way advance
the interests of the community in which he lived.

The career of Lyman Holman is one that well repays study. He was one
of those characters which impress themselves strongly upon those about them,
until they have left a certain stamp of their own quality upon the community,
which is thus enriched by their presence. His influence in a very large cir-
cle of associates in this direct and personal way was remarkable and seemed
far out of relation to the comparatively humble recognition his powers re-
ceived officially. He will long be remembered as one of the foremost of the
able men who promoted and developed his home city, and directed its growth
upon lines which have made it in many respects a model municipality.
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